b Earth Negotiations BulletinQ

A Reporting Servicefor Environment and Devel opment Negotiations

Vol. 4 No. 135

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (IISD) Wednesday, 24 November 1999

HIGHLIGHTSFROM CCD COP-3
TUESDAY, 23 NOVEMBER 1999
COP-3 delegates heard 45 statements during morning and after-
noon sessions of the Special Segment. They aso briefly met inthe
COW during the morning to adopt adecision on an additional
annex for Central and Eastern Europe. The Interparliamentary
Round Table drafted a declaration based on their two days of
discussions.

PLENARY

Forty-five officials addressed the Special Segment, including 9
Ministersand Deputy Ministers and one head of an international
organization. Delegates al so received areport on the Interparlia-
mentary Round Table and adopted their declaration.

SWITZERLAND urged the COP to show greater imagination
infinding appropriate solutionsto improve the Secretariat’swork.
PORTUGAL supported Secretariat action to help countriesidentify
resourcesto support implementation and to use efficiently financial
and human resources. SWEDEN expressed concern over proposals
for subsidiary bodies and the Secretariat’sinvolvement in work
beyond assisting countriesin elaborating their NAPs. TOGO
expressed hope that COP-3 negotiationswould lead to greater
support for the GM and Secretariat. HAITI supported setting the
Secretariat’s operating budget at the level presented by the Secre-
tariat and called for appropriate assistanceto hisregion.
LEBANON expressed hope that the Secretariat would adopt princi-
plesof justice and equity and ensure objectivity in providing assis-
tance for implementation. VENEZUELA said the criteria of
geographic distribution must be remembered, because although
some regions may be more affected, others al so have problemsthat
should be recognized.

BELGIUM said comparisons between instrumentsis not
productive and suggested giving the CST agreater role. NIGERIA
expressed hope that COP-3 would reach tangible outcomeslikea
Recife Mandate.

SWITZERLAND said theimplementation of NAPsdependson
the GM’sroleas an intermediary and cautioned the COP against
micro-managing the GM and adopting bureaucratic decisionsthat
will incur high administrative costs. ITALY and SWEDEN said
financial resources should be sought to develop the GM. CHAD
and the DOMINICAN REPUBLIC said more resources need to be
made available through the GM. SOUTH AFRICA called onthe
GM torelease funds. BOTSWANA said the GM hasnot lived up to
expectations and asked devel oped countriesto “refrain from

moving the goal-posts whenever the ball isin our control.”
ECUADOR appealed to all to devise an effective finance mecha-
nism to promote actionsto combat desertification.

DENMARK stressed using existing institutions and mecha-
nisms, including the GEF. TUNISIA said desertificationisjust as
important an issue as climate change, ozone protection and biodi-
versity and it should also qualify for GEF funding. GERMANY
noted that one of the CCD’s greatest challengesisto integrateinto
established foraof bilateral and multilateral development coopera-
tion and emphasized therole of chef defile asan important means
to coordinate and raisefunds. DENMARK said that, whereas work-
shopsandindividual activitiesmay have avalue, thereisaneed to
coordinate partners’ efforts.

NORWAY noted that the OECD countriesare further from the
goal of 0.7% of GNPfor official development assistance than they
werein 1992 and said that, while some point to theincreasein
private investments, these fundstend not to reach the poorest and
most fragile environments. FRANCE affirmed its commitment to
develop toolsto improve the desertification component within its
assistance programmes. ALGERIA and ETHIOPIA asked devel -
oped countriesto maintain their commitment under the CCD and
make more fundsavailable. CILSSregretted thelow level of partic-
ipation at the COP by many countries.

VENEZUELA said that linkages between Rio conventions
should be encouraged sincetheir objectivesareinterrelated.
NAMIBIA said such linkages ensure efficient use of resources. The
REPUBLIC OF KOREA welcomed the Secretariat’s moveto
Bonn, noting thiswould ensure links with the other conventions.
SWITZERLAND said the decisions of the WTO will haveagreat
impact on the struggle against desertification and called for coordi-
nated decision-making.

The UK emphasized the use of the national reportsto examine
lessonslearned and to plan actions for the future. ZAMBIA
stressed theimportance of reviewing and evaluating implementa-
tion and supported creating acommittee to do so. DENMARK
emphasized the role of NGOsin CCD implementation. The EC,
with CANADA and NORWAY, highlighted the role of women, and
added that much remainsto be doneto include themin implementa-
tion processes. UNDP said much traditional knowledgeisinthe
hands of women whose leading role must be recognized by
involving them in implementation and decision-making. The
GAMBIA emphasized the need to identify toolsto integrate strate-
giesfor poverty eradication, ascalled for in the Convention, and
highlighted the importance of adequate institutional structuresfor
efficient and effectiveimplementation.

Thisissueof the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © <enb@iisd.org> i swritten and edited by AngelaChurie<achurie@yahoo.com>, Jan-Stefan Fritz <j.fritz@l se.ac.uk>, Mark
Schulman <markschulman@hotmail.com> and Lynn Wagner, Ph.D. <lynn@iisd.org>. The Editor is Pamela Chasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org> and the Managing Editor is
Langston James"Kimo" Goree<kimo@iisd.org>. Digital editing by LeilaM ead <leila@interport.net>. The Sustaining Donorsof the Bulletinare TheNetherlands Ministry
of Foreign Affairs, the Government of Canada (through CIDA), the United States (through USAID), the Swiss Agency for Environment, Forestsand L andscape, the United
Kingdom Department for International Development (DFID) and the European Commission (DG-XI). General Support for the Bulletin during 1999 is provided by thethe
German Federal Ministry of Environment (BMU) and the German Federal Ministry of Development Cooperation (BMZ), the Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the
Government of Australia, the Ministries of Environment and Foreign Affairs of Austria, the Ministries of Foreign Affairs and Environment of Norway, the Ministry of
Foreign Affairs and the Ministry of Environment of Finland, the Government of Sweden, the United Nations Development Programme (UNDP), and the Global
Environment Facility (GEF). The Bulletin can be contacted by e-mail at <enb@iisd.org> and at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. |1SD can be contacted by e-
mail at <info@iisd.ca> and at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, Manitoba R3B 0Y 4, Canada. The opinions expressed in the Earth Negotiations Bulletin are
those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of 11SD and other funders. Excerpts from the Earth Negotiations Bulletin may be used in non-commercial
publications only and only with appropriate academic citation. For permission to use this material in commercial publications, contact the Managing Editor. Electronic
versions of the Bulletin are sent to e-mail distribution lists and can be found on the Linkages WWW server at http://www.iisd.ca/linkages/. The satellite image was taken
aboveBrazil (€)1999 TheLiving Earth, Inc. http://livingearth.com. For information on the Earth Negotiations Bulletin, send e-mail to <enb@iisd.org>.




Wednesday, 24 November 1999

e

Vol. 4 No. 135 Page 2

GERMANY highlighted decentralization, participatory frame-
works and the right of civil society to play arolein the use of
natural resources. NORWAY highlighted the necessity of peace,
democracy and respect for human rightsfor sustainable devel op-
ment. BELGUIM’sguiding principlesfor cooperation include
good governance, human rights and strengthening populations.
NIGERIA noted that his new government has restored freedom of
expression and association and moved towards political stability,
which are prerequisitesfor sustainable development.

GERMANY said affected countries should provide more
evidence that the CCD will be used asan instrument for devel op-
ment within their countries. The UK isundertaking an outreach
programme for its devel opment assistance managersto discussthe
implications the Rio Conventions have on their projects. The UK
and CANADA suggested that devel oping country partnersraisethe
Convention’sobjectivesin bilateral discussions. UNDP challenged
member statesto change the attitudes of bureaucrats and civil
society regarding the management of drylands.

JAPAN highlighted itsactivities at the bilateral level, which
have focused on reforestation and afforestation, training and inte-
grated community forestry development. WM O expressed support
for CST, towhichit provides assistance on benchmark and indica-
tors, traditional knowledge and EWS. SPAIN has created a center
for desertification research, istraining Latin American technicians
inthe management of river basinsand iselaboratingaNAP. CHILE
and EGY PT offered their technical experiencein dealing with
drought prevention and desertification.

BOTSWANA noted that, in accordance with the UN Conven-
tion on the Rights of the Child, hiscountry’s education curriculum
has changed to takeinto account environmental issues, including
desertification. MOZAMBIQUE s national effortsincludethe
establishment of an intersectoral working group involving repre-
sentatives from both the public and private sectors. DJIBOUTI
highlighted that the structural adjustment programmeit just signed
withthe IMF takes account of desertification. ECUADOR outlined
national, sub-regional and regional activities, including effortsto
develop asubregional programmein the Andes and plansto build
gender considerationsinto all aspects of itsNAP. RWANDA noted
that displaced populationsin his country continue to destroy areas
such asfragileforestsand he appealed for support. SYRIA said its
national activitiesinclude development of adatabase, forestry
programmes and awareness raising programmes. The DEMO-
CRATIC REPUBLIC OF CONGO noted the environmental conse-
quencesof civil war and appeal ed to othersto help hiscountry
catch upinitseffortsto protect the environment. ISRAEL noted
exchangeswith the Mediterranean region to combat desertification
and expressed regret that political considerations bar his country
from contributing to Asian regional efforts. POLAND said it
expectsto ratify the Convention next year. RUSSIA affirmed its
commit to the Convention.

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

The COW met inamorning session to consider adraft decision
on an additional regional implementation annex to the Convention
for Central and Eastern Europe. COW Chair Ashe noted that the
draft was agreed by consensusin informal consultations. Bo
Kjellén (Sweden), who facilitated theinformal consultations, said
the processfor accession of the Central and East European coun-
trieswill encourage all countriesto moveto ratification and will
facilitate cooperation and collaboration with other conventionsin
theregion. BENIN, for the AFRICAN GROUP, urged the Central

and East European countriesto accedein large numbersto
strengthen the combined effortsto combat desertification and miti-
gatethe effects of drought. ARMENIA, on behalf of the Central
and East European countries, expressed gratitude to Bo Kjellén for
hiswork and to the regional groupswhose constructive attitude

hel ped reach consensus during the discussions. The COW adopted
the draft decision.

INTERPARLIAMENTARY ROUND TABLE

Parliamentarians continued discussing their contributionsto
CCD implementation on the second day of the round table session.
COP-3 President Sarney Filho, speaking in part asafederal deputy
himself, attached significanceto the round table’swork and noted
theimportance of support from national parliamentsto implement
the Convention. Several Parliamentarians continued to emphasize
theimportance of harmonizing the three Rio conventions (FCCC,
CBD and CCD), environmental education and the education of
women. One member added theidea of transferring debt services
for educational programmes, while another highlighted the sustain-
able management of forests. Parliamentarians then devoted the rest
of the session to the consideration of their draft declaration.

The Round Tabl € sdraft declaration underlines the Parliamen-
tarian’s commitment to implementing the CCD by, inter alia:
implementing |egidation to combat desertification; strengthening
educational, scientific and cultural policiesthrough public aware-
ness campaigns; promoting the active participation of civil society,
local communities, youth and women; and supporting initiatives of
international agencies and donor countries to mobilize financial
assistance. In highlighting the fundamental rolethat education,
science and culture play in the challenge to achieve sustainable
development, they called for measuresto combat desertificationin
the areas of environmental education, applied research, technology
transfer and capacity building. The declaration also contains state-
mentsthat call on Partiesto promote cooperation at thelocal,
national and regional level and between relevant international
conventions and bodies. The Parliamentarians agreed to establish
an open-ended high-level forum to meet at each CCD COPto share
information on national initiatives and to monitor round table deci-
sionsin parliaments of countries Party to the Convention.
Following several amendments, the declaration was adopted.

IN THE CORRIDORS

Delegates continued to consult intensively throughout Tuesday
to try and resolve remaining outstanding issues by the COW
Chair’sWednesday deadline. They reported difficultiesin agreeing
whether to increase the Secretariat’s budget by 10% or 25% and on
whether to establish acommittee for the review of implementation.
Progresswas noted in the discussionsto elaborate adraft decision
on the Global Mechanism. Delegates also said discussions had
begun on a possible Recife Mandate, but divergent viewswere
expressed regarding the appropriateness of aMandate under this
Convention.

THINGSTOLOOK FOR TODAY
PLENARY: The Specia Segment will resumeat 10:00 amin
the Plenary Hall. A dialogue with NGOs on empowering womenin
the NAP processis scheduled for the afternoon.
COW: The COW isscheduled to meet inthe morning to review
draft decisions on outstanding issues.



